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Alexandria was formally authorized as a town by an act of the Virginia
Assembly in 1748. The town was laid off into uniform rectangular blocks
with George Washington acting as one of the original surveyors. From

the mid-eighteenth century until the Civil War, the town grew considerably
as it served as the principal seaport and commercial center of northern

Virginia.

The "0ld and Historic District of Alexandria" as defined in Ordinance
1338 of the City Council of Alexandria, is an area embracing nearly 100
blocks in the heart of the original town. Within this district is to be
found probably the largest concentration of late-eighteenth and early-
nineteenth century &Eﬁgﬁjafgﬁiteétufé_in_theLSF@te- While a large number
of the buildings aré significant examples of Colonial and Federal
architecture, many have important hiéﬁﬂ;i&ﬂ}jH%gggigg}ggﬁwgg_Eell. Some
of "the WoFs notable architecturally and historically important buildings
in the area include: The Ramsey House, the city's earliest structure;
Christ Church (erected 1773), a well preserved Colonial church where the
Washingtons and Lees often worshipped; the Carlyle House (built 1752), a
notable mid-Georgian mansion where Generdl Braddock was entertained; the
Lloyd House (erected 1798), a fine Federal structure; Gadsbz's Tavern
(1792), ~ City Tavern (1798), two architecturally notable buildings which
were the scene of much early political activity; the Robert E, Lee House
(1795), a large Federal house where Lee spent much of his bovhood; the
LopﬁﬁFairfax House (1816), one of the nation's outstanding Federal
mansions; and the Alexandria Lyceum (1834), the city's finest Greek

Revival building.

Although Alexandria is famous primarily for its Federal architecture, it
should be noted that the city contains a number of fine Victorian
structures as well. There are also géﬁf“ﬁiﬁéﬁégﬁgﬁ“qgﬁtgrymﬁgwnhggggs
which are not significant as individual examples of architecture but are
important in that they serve to maintain the scale of the city and

visually link the more important buildings.

While the historic district of Alexandria does contain many individual
buildings of national significance, the district as a whole is extremely
important as it is one of the very few urban areas in the state where
enough of the old buildings have survived so that one cam grasp a sense of
an early town environment.
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‘The general layout of the historic district of Alexandria consists of
uniform rectangular blocks in a grid pattern. The streets are lined
with:.townhouses, the more important of which are generally free-standing
while the:majority are either semi-detached or non-detached. Most of
the structures are brick or frame.
includes the full-range of the late-eighteenth and nineteenth century
styles, but the district is more moted for its outstandipg buildings of

the Federal period.
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The architecture found in the districi
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DESCRIPTION: Inventory (appendix)
In addition to Victorian residences, the Alexandria district contains an

ample stock of small scale early 20th-century town houses. These were designed
in a variety of modes including American Four Square, Bungalow, Neo-Colonial
and Second Empire during an era of agressive eclecticism. The residential units
appear as infill development throughout the district. Typical areas include
the 500 block of N. Washington Street and the 700 block of Oronoco Street.

The commercial area of the district centers around the corner of S. Washington
Street and King Street. Consequently both King and Washington are bordered with
commercial buildings and storefronts of varying ages, most of which date from
the first third of the 20th century. Of particular note are the Art Deco Virginia
Public Service building at T175. Washington Street, the Neo-Colonial Post Office
and Court House at 200 S. Washington Street and the Burke and Herbert Bank at

625 King: Street.

The district also encompasses several factory buildings along Alexandria's

formerly active waterfront. The most notable of these structures is the Fformer
Ford Plant, designed by Albert Kahn. The major part of this structure is a vellow
glazed brick, saw-tooth roofed shed designed in an Art Deco style. Appended

to this structure are three concrete additions designed in a rigid, yet sympathetic
style.

(see continuation sheet #2)
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7. DESCRIPTION: Ianventory (appendix)

FRANKLIN STREET & UNION STREET

(0ld Ford Plant): concrete; 2 stories; flat roof; 8 bays on main building,
20 bays on .annex., Modern. 1920s. Architect: Albert Kahn. The 0ld
Ford Plant is a unique structure in Virginia for it is the only structure
in the state designed by the famous factory architect Albert Kahn. The
main 8-bay, concrete structure has a 3-story tower at its center. It is
ad joined by a 20-plus-bay, concrete structure. All windows are of indus-

trial sash.

KING STREET

625  (Burke and Herbert Bank): brick (stretcher bond); 2 stories; flat
roof; 3 bays. Bank. Vernacular Classical. 1906, This small bank, with
bracketed cornice and curved pediment with inscribed date, is a fine
example of an early twentieth-century commercial structure.

627: brick (stretcher bond); 2 stories; flat roof; 2 bays. Commercial
(store). Classical Eclectic. 1910. This is an excellent example of an
early twentieth—century brick commercial building designed in rather eclec-—

tic classical wocabulary.

ORONOCO STREET

AREY brick (Flemish bond); 2 stories; gable roof; 3 bays each;
l-story, l-side-bay, arch entrance. Row house. 20th-century Vernacular.
1915-20. This structure contributes to the small scale streetscape of

this part of the district.

NORTH WASHINGTON STREET

520 brick (stretcher bond); 2 stories; hipped roof (composition); 1
. hipped dormer; 2 bays; l-story, l-bay porch. Detached house. American
Four Square. 1920, This residence wmaintains the low scale of its

nineteenth~ and twentieth-century neighbors.

524 brick (stretcher bond); 2 stories; mansard roof (slate); 3 bays;
I=-story, 3-bay porch. Detached town house. Second Empire. 1910. This
building clearly contributes to the fabric of the neighborhood in scale,

style, and materials.

528: brick (stretcher bond); 2 stories; mansard roof (slate); 1 shed
dormer; 3 bays. Detached town house, Twentieth~century Vernacular.
the low

1910, This modified American Four Square building maintains
density of this area of the district.

{(see continuation sheet #3)
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7. DESCRIPTION -~ Inventory (appendix)

SOUTH WASHINGTON STREET

117:: stone (limestone); 3 stories; flat roof; 5.bays. Commercial (office).
Art Deco. Ca. 1930s. Now a Marine recruiting office, this 3-story,
limestone-faced structure is a fine example of the reserved form of Art
Deco~style that was frequently used in commercial buildings.

. 200:(U.S5. Post Office and Courthouse): brick (5-course American bond); 3

stories; gable roof (composition); 2 gable dormers; 5 bays. Post Office,
Colonial Revival. 1930. This 3-story, brick-and-limestone building with
its large cupola is an excellent example of the late Colonial Revival
architecture so popular for public buildings in the south.
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8. SIGNIFICANCE -- Historical Background

In addition to the previously discussed 19th-century structures, significant
20-century buildings still stand in the historic district. These residential,
commercial, and industrial buildings “contribute to the area's historic fabric

and survive as a three-dimensional palimpsest of Alexandria's development.

In part due to its excellent rail connections to both north and south, Alexandria

became an important industrial and commerical center in Northern Virginia. In
fact, the Potomac vyards were the largest classification railway vards in the
country at the turn of the century. As a result of this transportation system,

Alexandria developed a large industrial center along its waterfront adjacent to
the railway. The list of industrial enterprises in Alexandria during the early
20th century is rather lengthy, including large lumber yards, leather and shoe
factories, coal wharves, ice factories, a brewery, glass works, a tile manufactury,
and a gas works. This combination of industrial vitality and excellent transportation
facilities led Henry Ford to build a plant along the Alexandria waterfront. Pesigned
by Albert Kahn and completed in 1932, the structure incorporates a saw-tooth
roof, and Art Deco facade with a remarkable degree of structural clarity, making
it stand today as the most important example of early modern architecture in

Alexandria.

As the industrial area developed, so too did the commercial base rise to
support the needs of the residents who were drawn to Alexandria by the availability
of Jjobs and adequate housing. During the first two decades of this century,
a central business district developed along King and Washington ™ streets. The
Post Office and Courthouse designed by the Office of the Supervising Architect
is an excellent example of a late Colonial Revival structure; the Marine recruiting
center, with its stripped Classical details and Art Deco-style ironwork, is the

finest example of that style in the district.

The aforementicned combination of industrial development along with Alexandria's
proximity to Washington D. C. caused an explosion of residential development
in the first third of the 20th century. With its reasonable rents, relatively
pure drinking water, fine educational system, and availability of loans through
various cash-rich building associations, small scale residential developments, designed
in several styles, sprang up throughout the city. While the units are architecturally
significant and c¢ohesive by themselves, these residences are also stylistically
sympathetic to the fabric of the 19th-century city. The early 20th-century Empire
and Four Square structures at 320-528 North Washington Street, for example, share
a commonality of scale and materiail with the cotton mill across the street.
709-711 Oronoco: Strest performs the same function in relation to the neighboring

19th~century buildings.
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Alezandria was a thriving port until 1861, dealing vrimarily in the
export of tobaceo and grain. Tobacco was ihe currency with which
John Alexander in 1680 purchased the site of the fuiuvre towa. It
was also tobacco that brought Scotch merchants te the alte in 1733,
where they soon erecfed riverfront warchouges., The rapid growib of
the arsa spurred Vivginia’s Gewneral Assembly to suthorize the laying
out of a town in 1748. Its original trusiees nawed the town
"Alexendria’ in honor of John Alexandey, The purvey of the town was
made by the Fairfax County Burveyor and his 17-year old assiustant,
George Washington. The fermal incorpervation of the town, plys its
designaiion as a Port of Bntry, occcurred in 1779, Soon, gyaln fvem
western couniics became & moye waluable export thaa toebaecco. Ouly
the Civil War ended'its useinlness 2s a port, S

Burviving sérusctures that zefleet Alegandrla s early life muaber
about 200 and lie levgely withia an area of sbout 25 sguares of Lhe
wodern city, bounded voughly by the Potomac River, Franklin Sftreet,
North Washimngton Btyeet avnd Queen Sirveel, These siructures inciude
both warehouses and handsome duellings, Gf the latter, The Hamany
Hou#e 38 the eity's oldest. Gadshy's Tavern {sotually twe buildings
daeing, respeetiveiy, fram 1?52 anﬂ 1"32) wa ter-of

mercaniz’e establxshments“ Along a cobblestone and tree shaded biock
of Pripce Sitreet are the colorful hopes of early ship masters. OF
the five surviving early warchouses, those of John Fiisgevald ave
st31) in wse, Title to Alexandria's historic buildings resis in
various private ownews and public bodies,

¥EHSE tFC3:10~13~66
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7. Importance and Description {cont'd)

groupings of many-hued old homes. Most of the houses are brick, but there are
two quite distinctive clapboard houses. Many of these old row houses were homes
of sea captains when Alexandria was a thriving port; thus, 1t is often called
Capta_in*s Row. The street has much of the appearance of English and Scotilsh
‘seaport towne. Cobblestone paving, which tradition says was laid by Hessian
prisonere of war, has been left in this f£final block of Prince Street.

‘he old port section on the eastern end of King Street down to the Potomac

River strongly suggests Alexandria's past mercantile interests. Chequire House
at 202 King Streeft and Gilpin House, 208 King Street, are typical 18th century
merchant’'s houses where shops were located on the ground floor and living
guarters were above. Bernard Chequire came from France ‘apd built his place in

1 797. The lower floor was an office and warehouse while the upper floors were
eautifully paneled and furnished family gquarters. Colonel George Gilpin came

t o Alexandria from Maryland before the Revolution to handle the shipping business
of the family. The Gilpin House was built in 1798,

are still in use. There are three early warechouses on the north side of the
1 00 block of King Street which have been little altered.

The Ramsay House at 221 King Street is the oldeat house in Alexandria. It was
built by William Rameay, an influential Scotch merchant, who took a prominent
part in the early period of the town, He was a founder, one of the first Trustees,

and the first Mayor of Alexandria in 1749.

The Carlyle Mansion at 121 North Falrfax Street was built in the mid-eighteenth
c entury by John Carlyle of Dumfries, Scotland. Carlyle was one of Alexandria’s
f irst Trustees and was in charge of the Commissary and Supplies for General
B raddock’s expedition in the French and Indian War. John Carlyle was a Scotch
merchant and ship owner; the original house and its furnishings are today an
wnusual example of the home life of a well~to-do merchant of the 18th century.

G-adsby's Tavern at 128 North Royal Street was built at a time when Alexandria
was 2 busy port and a center of gocial and political prominence. Gadsby's Tavern




